
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Friday, 22 February 2019. 
 01476 406080

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Monday, 4 March 2019 at 10.30 am
Studio 1 - Guildhall Arts Centre, St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. 

NG31 6PZ

Committee 
Members:

Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Mrs Brenda Sumner (Chairman)
Councillor Hannah Westropp (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Lynda Coutts, Councillor Bob Sampson and Councillor Ian Stokes

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy Leader of the Council 

Agenda
1.  Membership

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2.  Apologies

3.  Disclosure of interests

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4.  Minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2018 (Pages 3 - 4)

5.  Amendments to the Constitution

Constitution 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 Outside Bodies Review

Report from the Deputy Leader of the Council 

 Constitution Review 

Report from the Chairman of the Constitution Committee

(Pages 5 - 10)

(Pages 11 -14)

6.  Any other business which the Chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent



MINUTES
CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 3 SEPTEMBER 2018

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Lynda Coutts
Councillor Bob Sampson
Councillor Ian Stokes
Councillor Mrs Brenda Sumner (Chairman)
Councillor Hannah Westropp (Vice-Chairman)

OFFICERS OTHER MEMBERS

Solicitor to the Council (Lucy Youles)
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor)

Councillor Kelham Cooke

8. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

None disclosed.

9. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 4 JUNE 2018

As the minutes had been presented to Council and the Chairman was the only 
Member who had been attendance at the last meeting, she confirmed the 
minutes as a true record.

10. REVIEW OF OUTSIDE BODIES

Members had been circulated with report LDS315 which concerned a request 
for the Committee to review outside bodies to which appointments are made 
and the process of making appointments.

In presenting the report the Deputy Leader referred to how Outside Bodies 
were currently appointed.  As part of the review he felt that a mechanism 
should be put in place to change appointments if necessary. Currently 
appointments were made when District elections had taken place for a four 
year period. There was no process in place to make changes during this 
period.  He felt that appointments should be made on an annual basis in much 
the same way as Committee Membership was dealt with.  He gave examples of 
two outside bodies that hadn’t met in some time or the Member appointment 
was no longer valid due to administration changes.   Reference was then made 

3

Agenda Item 4



to how Members fed back information from organisations, he appreciated that 
there was a folder in the Members Lounge but was this the best way to 
circulate information.   Also in what capacity were Members appointed, as a 
listener, a participant or were they acting as a trustee. 

Members of the Committee then gave examples of their involvement in their 
respective outside body.   One Member stated that in respect of the Internal 
Drainage Boards they did require the same representation throughout the four 
year period.  It was stated that appointments would not be changed on an 
annual basis unless required. 

Further discussion followed with reference being made to organisations not 
currently on the outside bodies who would maybe benefit from a Council 
representation.  Members felt that they needed more information on each 
outside body such as their Terms of Reference and in what capacity they 
required a council representative.  Members when appointed to an outside 
body often did not know what was expected of them and it would be helpful in 
the future if a summary could be given when appointments were made.

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the details of each outside body 
should be reviewed, that Terms of Reference should be obtained and to see if 
they still required a representative and in what capacity.    

As part of the review Members were to be contacted to see if they were aware 
of any relevant organisation that would benefit from Council representation and 
a list should be submitted to the next meeting of the Committee.

Recommendation 

That each outside body should be reviewed, Terms of Reference obtained 
and to see if a Council representative is still required and in what 
capacity. The procedure for appointment to outside bodies should be 
reviewed and considered to be included in the Constitution.  

11. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 10:47am.

4



Constitution Committee
4 March 2019

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke

The Deputy Leader of the Council

        

Outside Bodies Review
This report requests that the Committee considers the outcome of the review of Outside Bodies.

Report Author

Lucy Bonshor, Democratic Officer

 01476 406120

 l.bonshor@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Ben Bix, Head of Governance 15 February 2019

Approved by: Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - Resources 19 February 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Deputy Leader of the 
Council 19 February 2019

Recommendations to the decision maker 

1. Notes the content of the report.
2. Recommends to Council that the Constitution is amended to enable appointments 

to be made to outside bodies at the annual council meeting and any further 
mechanisms for feedback by Members appointed to outside bodies.   

5

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:l.bonshor@southkesteven.gov.uk


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 At the last meeting of the Committee, a decision was made to contact all outside bodies 

for their terms of reference and whether or not a Council representative was still required.  
Appointments to outside bodies were made at the request of the outside body. 

1.2 Currently appointments were made every four years in line with District Council elections, 
apart from the internal drainage boards whose appointments are made three yearly, 
(appointments are due in 2020) and appointments to the Local Government Association 
and the East Midlands Councils which are made annually.

1.3 At the last meeting of the Committee reference was made to amending the Constitution to 
allow for appointments to all outside bodies to be made annually at the annual Council 
meeting.  If Members agreed this way forward the Constitution would need to be amended 
to reflect this at Article 4.

1.4 Reference was also made to how feedback from outside bodies was circulated to 
Members, currently this was by way of a feedback folder in the Members Lounge.

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 All current outside bodies were contacted to see if a representative was still required and 

for them to submit a copy of their Terms of Reference.    The responses to date are shown 
on the table at Appendix 1.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 Members of the Committee should consider options relevant to the review and propose 

recommendations on their preferred options going forward, including any other 
mechanisms for Members to feedback information from the outside bodies.

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
4.1 To enable appointments to outside bodies to be undertaken every year at the annual 

Council meeting having regard to the requirement from the internal drainage boards that 
the same Members are appointed for the three-year period.

4.2 To establish any other way to feedback information from outside bodies.

5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
5.1 Recommendations from the Constitution Committee will be forwarded to the next meeting 

of the Council for determination.

6 Financial Implications 
6.1 Costs that are incurred as a result of Members attendance at the meetings of outside 

bodies are included in the annual budgetary allocations. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles Assistant Director, Resources

6



7 Legal and Governance Implications 
7.1 It is a matter for Council to determine any change in the way nominations are made. Any 

matters considered by the Constitution Committee must be reported to full Council for a 
decision to be made.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Ben Bix, Head of Governance

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
8.1 There are no relevant impact analysis relating to the content of this report.  The 

requirement for an impact analysis will be considered during the decision making process.

9 Risk and Mitigation
9.1 None.

10 Community Safety Implications 
10.1 None.

11 Background Papers
11.1 The Constitution 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3734/Public%20reports%20pack%20
11th-Jul-2018%20Constitution.pdf?T=10  

Report LDS315 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21247/LDS315%20Review%20of%2
0Outside%20Bodies%20Final.pdf  

Minutes from Constitution Committee 3 September 2018 
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=497&MId=3705&Ver=
4 

12 Appendices
12.1 Appendix 1 – Review spreadsheet – Responses from outside bodies

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

N/A

Previously Considered by: Constitution 
Committee

3 September 2018

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  1 March 2019

7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3734/Public%20reports%20pack%2011th-Jul-2018%20Constitution.pdf?T=10
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3734/Public%20reports%20pack%2011th-Jul-2018%20Constitution.pdf?T=10
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21247/LDS315%20Review%20of%20Outside%20Bodies%20Final.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21247/LDS315%20Review%20of%20Outside%20Bodies%20Final.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=497&MId=3705&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=497&MId=3705&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



9



10



Constitution Committee
4 March 2019

Report of: Councillor Brenda Sumner

Chairman of the Constitution 
Committee

        

Review of the Constitution of the Council 
This report sets out a programme of review of the Constitution of the Council, in order to provide a 
new, consistent, modern and well-understood document that enables transparency, efficiency and 
accountability in decision making. 

Report Author

Ben Bix, Head of Governance

01476 406515

ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - Resources 13 February 2019

Approved by: Ken Lyon Assistant Chief Executive, Housing Delivery 19 February 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Brenda Sumner, Chairman of the 
Constitution Committee 19 February 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. To agree to commence a comprehensive review of the Constitution of the Council.
2. To convene three new meetings of the Constitution committee in the 2018/19 

municipal year to undertake the review: 18 March, 8 April and 29 April 2019. 

11

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The Local Government Act 2000 (Constitutions) (England) Direction 2000 set out 26 

matters which should be included in a Local Authority Constitution. The then Secretary of 
State produced a ‘modular constitution’ with a proposed structure and on most points a 
suggested text. Guidance was also produced on the content of the constitutions and how 
executive arrangements should be operated. 

1.2 Legislation and regulations have subsequently been enabled through amendments to the 
Constitution but no further modular constitution has been produced by the government, 
and there is no indication that there will be again. 

1.3 A substantial review of the Constitution took place during 2013/14. That review changed 
the layout and order of the Constitution, moving the document away from the 2000 
modular constitution, and toward a bespoke order that no-longer aligned with the modular 
constitution, namely merging the Articles and Rules of Procedure where applicable. It is 
now timely to review that approach and consider whether to re-establish the rules of 
procedure distinctly from the Articles. 

1.4 This review will also ensure that the constitution reflects the current functions, and 
ambitions of the local authority and enables the Council to operate efficiently in a changing 
local authority environment.  

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 The Committees and Governance Working Group, established by Council in November 

2018 emphasised the clear desire for the Constitution of the Council to be 
comprehensively reviewed once the committee and governance review had concluded.  

2.2 Officers within Senior Team have requested that the scheme of delegation be reviewed 
and updated, and that better definitions of Key and Non-Key decisions are established to 
provide greater certainty.

2.3 At the Council meeting on 31 January 2019, during debate at minute reference 63, 
Members emphasised that it may be an appropriate time to conduct a review of the 
Constitution. Reassurance was given that a review of the Constitution was planned; the 
review would be considered with the Constitution Committee, which would then make 
recommendations to Council. 

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 An editorial review would ensure that changes such as officer role titles, and committee 

names would be consistent, but not check whether the purpose and robustness of each 
clause were still relevant and certain. This is not the preferred option because it would not 
enable the Council to fully review and assess current governance processes and would 
not bring the Council in line with best practice in the sector. 

4 Preferred Option
4.1 A comprehensive review, effectively delivering a new Constitution would ensure that the 

Council has a consistent document, aligned to best-practice in local authority governance. 
This would provide greater certainty of decision making and a document that would be 
easier to read and navigate.

12



Indicative Scope
 Reshape the form and structure – the final Constitution will effectively be 'new' rather 

than an updating of the existing Constitution  
 Ensure accuracy, consistency and future proofing 
 Provide more certain definitions of Key, non-key (member), and officer administrative 

decisions
 Re-introduce a revised Rules of Procedure part of the constitution with three distinct 

sections:

a) One section of Council (Committee) procedure rules applicable to bodies that 
discharge Council side functions (therefore not Cabinet nor Overview and Scrutiny).

b) One section of Cabinet Procedure Rules
c) One section of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules 

 Establish a Companies Committee to offer certainty about governance interactions 
between the Council and its wholly owned companies.

 Undertake a comprehensive review of Officer delegations 
 Provide a delegation to the Monitoring Officer to make any consequential amendments 

to the Constitution, without further referral to the Committee  
 Develop a “Proper Officer” naming convention rather than maintain current post titles 

throughout (and maintain the proper officer list as an appendix when necessary) 

5 Reasons for the Recommendations(s)
5.1 To continue to discharge the Council’s duty to prepare and keep up to date its 

Constitution.  

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
6.1 Subject to the agreement of the Constitution Committee, the programme of review 

meetings will be scheduled in consultation with the Chairman of the Committee.  

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 The Council has engaged LGSS Law to support its provision of Legal Services for the 

Council. LGSS Law have the necessary expertise to deliver the review within the budget 
already allocated for Legal Services. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles Assistant Director, Resources

8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 Section 9P of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011) 

requires that a local authority must prepare and keep up to date a document (its 
constitution) which contains—

 a copy of the authority’s standing orders for the time being,

 a copy of the authority’s code of conduct (if any) for the time being under section 28 
of the Localism Act 2011,

 such information as the Secretary of State may direct, and

 such other information (if any) as the authority considers appropriate.

13



8.2 The Constitution is not up to date, and maintenance is no longer sufficient, therefore a 
comprehensive review should be undertaken in order to produce a new Constitution, in 
preparation for the forthcoming municipal year.  

8.3 The Constitution Committee may continue to conduct its meetings during the pre-election 
period, discharging the normal business of the Committee. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Ben Bix, Head of Governance

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 The Constitution and its Procedures, Rules and Codes act as an enabling tool in helping 

the Council meet its obligations under the Human Rights Act 1998 and the Equality Act 
2010. 

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 The preparation of a new Constitution for the Council will mitigate any uncertainty of roles 

in decision making. 

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 There are no community safety implications from reviewing the Constitution.  

12 Other Implications (where significant) 
12.1 There are no significant other implications from reviewing the Constitution. 

13 Background Papers
13.1 Previous reviews are publicly available on the Council’s website. 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=497&MId=2813&Ver=
4  

14 Appendices
None.

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Constitution 
Committee

4 June 2018

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  Upon the completion of the 
review by the Constitution 
Committee, the revised 
Constitution will be 
recommended to Council for 
approval in 2019/20 

14

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=497&MId=2813&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=497&MId=2813&Ver=4

	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 September 2018
	5 Amendments to the Constitution
	Appendix A Review Spreadsheet
	Review of Constitution


